

Gerald Freund papers 6910321

This finding aid was produced using ArchivesSpace on January 13, 2025. English

Describing Archives: A Content Standard

Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Butler Library, 6th Floor Columbia University, Mail Code 1127 535 W. 114th St. New York, NY 10027 Business Number: (212) 854-5153

Fax Number: (212) 854-5153 Fax Number: (212) 854-1365 rbml@libraries.cul.columbia.edu

URL: http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/indiv/rbml/index.html

Table of Contents

Summary Information	3
History	3
Scope and Content	4
Arrangement	5
Administrative Information	5
Controlled Access Headings	6
Collection Inventory	6
Series I: Education	6
Subseries I.1: Haverford College	6
Subseries I.2: Oxford College	7
Subseries I.3: Teaching, Professorship, Deanship and Academic Consulting	7
Series II: Private Funding Associates	9
Series III: Rockefeller Foundation	15
Series IV: Harlem Educational Activities Fund	16
Series V: MacArthur Foundation	19
Series VI: Whiting Foundation	20
Series VII: Woodstock Country School	22
Series VIII: Miscellaneous Correspondence	23
Series IX: Subject Files	26
Subseries IX.1: Pro Bono Files	26
Subseries IX.2: General Subject Files	26
Series X: Published Books	30
Subseries X.1: Unholy Alliance	31
Subseries X.2: Germany Between Two Worlds	31
Subseries X.3:Narcissism and Philanthropy	31
Subseries X.4: Research	32
Series XI: Unprocessed Boxes	33

Summary Information

Repository: Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Creator: Freund, Gerald, 1930-1997

Title: Gerald Freund papers

ID: 6910321

ID: MS#1710

Date [inclusive]: 1952-1997

Date [bulk]: 1975-1995

Physical 62.50 linear feet 50 boxes & 1 folder in mapcase

Description:

Language of the

Material:

English.

Abstract: The papers of philanthropic advisor and writer Gerald Freund.

The collection primarily documents Freund's work with several philanthropic organizations and also includes his academic

pursuits and publications.

Preferred Citation

Identification of specific item; Date (if known); Gerald Freund Papers; Box and Folder; Rare Book and Manuscript Library, Columbia University Library.

History

Gerald Freund was born in Berlin in 1931. His family then immigrated to Britain, then to New York, during World War II. He graduated from Haverford College and Oxford in 1952 and 1955, respectively. Freund became an active member of both the academic and philanthropic communities. He taught at Haverford College, and was also the dean of humanities and arts at Hunter College.

[^] Return to Table of Contents

[^] Return to Table of Contents

History

He served as the president of Private Funding Associates and was the first director of the MacArthur Foundation's Prize Fellows Program. He also worked for the Rockefeller Foundation, the Whiting Foundation, the Ford Foundation, and helped set up the Rona Jaffe Awards and Lillian Gish Prize. In addition to his philanthropic work, Freund has written two books about Russian and German relations, *Unholy Alliance*, and *Germany Between Two Worlds*, in addition to *Philanthropy and Narcissism*, which explores the past aspects and future prospects of philanthropy in America.

^ Return to Table of Contents

History

Freund died of lung cancer in 1997. He was 66.

^ Return to Table of Contents

Scope and Content

The Gerald Freund Papers is comprised of materials relating to Freund's career as both an advising philanthropist and an academic writer and historian. The collection contains professional correspondence, administrative files, subject files, and financial records that document Freund's work at several philanthropic organizations, particularly his work at Private Funding Associates and the MacArthur Foundation. The collection also includes academic papers, notes, and research that relate to his academic career and published works.

^ Return to Table of Contents

Scope and Content

There are twenty three (23) unprocessed boxes which are listed in Series XI.

^ Return to Table of Contents

Arrangement

This collection is arranged into eleven series.

^ Return to Table of Contents

Administrative Information

Publication Statement

Rare Book and Manuscript Library

Butler Library, 6th Floor Columbia University, Mail Code 1127 535 W. 114th St. New York, NY 10027 Business Number: (212) 854-5153

Fax Number: (212) 854-1365 rbml@libraries.cul.columbia.edu

URL: http://www.columbia.edu/cu/lweb/indiv/rbml/index.html

Revision Description

xml document instance created by ceh EAD was imported spring 2019 as part of the ArchivesSpace Phase II migration. 2014-05-03 2019-05-20

Restrictions on Access

This collection is located off-site. You will need to request this material at least three business days in advance to use the collection in the Rare Book and Manuscript Library reading room.

Restrictions on Access

The files of the Whiting Foundation will be closed until 2049.

Terms Governing Use and Reproduction

Reproductions may be made for research purposes. The RBML maintains ownership of the physical material only. Copyright remains with the creator and his/her heirs. The responsibility to secure copyright permission rests with the patron.

Immediate Source of Acquisition

1998.1999.M018: Source of acquisition--Jonathan Freund. Method of acquisition--Gift; Date of acquisition--1998.

Processing Information

Papers processed Emily B. King, New York University, Class of 2015 2014.

Accruals

Materials may have been added to the collection since this finding aid was prepared. Contact rbml@columbia.edu for more information.

^ Return to Table of Contents

Controlled Access Headings

- Charities
- Freund, Gerald, 1930-1997

Collection Inventory

Series I: Education

Scope and Contents

This series documents Freund's academic life, as an undergraduate at Haverford College and a graduate student at Oxford College. It also includes professional academic work: teaching at Haverford College, work as acting dean at Hunter College and Yale, and as an academic consultant for several other collegiate institutions.

Subseries I.1: Haverford College

Scope and Contents

This subseries is arranged chronologically, and contains his notes, papers, and interest in student organizations.

Title/Description	Instances
Haverford's Counterpoint and Miscellany,, 1948-1949	box 1
Papers and Class Notes, 1948-1952	box 1
Undergraduate Papers, 1948-1952	box 1
United World Federalists, 1949-1952	box 1
Haverford College Student Government, 1950-1951	box 1
Honors Thesis and Term Paper, 1952	box 1
Haverford College Graduation, 1952	box 1
Haverford Alumni Papers, 1952	box 1
Grad Schools, 1952	box 1
Poetry, undated	box 1
Class Photograph (31.5 inches x 7.5 inches), 1951-1952 <u>Physical Description</u> : 1 photoprints	mapcase 15- L-8

Subseries I.2: Oxford College

Physical Description: 31.3" x 7.5"

Scope and Contents

This subseries is arranged chronologically, and contains Freund's notes, as well as personal correspondence and photos.

Title/Description	Instances
Fulbright Grant, 1952-1953	box 1
Oxford <i>Angle</i> and Miscellany, 1952-1956	box 1
Correspondence and Research, 1954-1958	box 1
Oxford Graduation, 1956	box 1
Photos from Oxford Days, undated	box 1

Subseries I.3: Teaching, Professorship, Deanship and Academic Consulting Scope and Contents

This subseries is arranged into three groups: Teaching and Professorship, which chronologically documents his work as professor at Haverford College; Deanship, which documents his work as dean alphabetically by school, and Academic Consulting, which alphabetically documents his files and reports for academic institutions.

Title/Description	Instances
-------------------	-----------

1	
Teaching and Professorship	
International Relations Lecture Notes, 1950-1960	box 2
Lecture for British Broadcasting Corporation, "The Mood of the Democracies,", 1956	box 3
Haverford Syllabi and Exams, 1957-1960	box 2
Haverford Lecture Notes: US Foreign Policy, 1958-1959	box 1
Haverford College Bulletin, 1958-1960	box 2
Political Science Lecture Notes, 1958-1959	box 1
Haverford Test Questions, 1958-1959	box 1
Haverford College: Lecture Notes, 1959	box 1
Political Science Lecture Notes, 1959	box 2
Offer of Employment from The American University School of International Service,, 1960	box 3
Guest Lectures, 1962	box 2
International Organization Course Material, undated	box 2
Deanship	
Hunter College: Appointment as Dean and Director of Arts and Humanities,, 1971	box 4
Hunter College Tenure and Resumes, 1975	box 2
Hunter College: Correspondence, 1975	box 4
Hunter College: NEH Grant Proposal, 1976	box 4
Hunter College Meeting, 1994	box 17
Yale: Theater and Drama, 1963-1968	box 3
Yale: Music, 1964-1968	box 3
Yale: Art and Architecture, 1967-1968	box 3
Yale: Creative and Performing Arts Consultant, 1969-1970	box 3
Academic Consulting	
Annenberg Center at the University of Pennsylvania Consultant Report,, 1971	box 4
Bio Materials, CV, and Photos, undated	box 2
Cincinnati Council on World Affairs Meeting and Seminar, 1965	box 3
Dartmouth University Consultant Report on Arts, 1979	box 4
Allan Evans Research, undated	box 2

North Stamford Democratic Club, 1956	box 3
Presidential Search Committee for SUNY College and Purchase,, 1977	box 3
World Affairs Council, 1959	box 2
Washington Center of Foreign Policy Research, 1960	box 2

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series II: Private Funding Associates

Scope and Contents

This series, split into two sections, documents Freund's work as the president of the firm Private Funding Associates. The first section, arranged chronologically, depicts administrative files of the firm, including proposals, research, advertising, and formal correspondence. The second section, arranged alphabetically, includes all of the firm's Projects and Collaborations with corporations, foundations, and philanthropic institutions. These files contain proposals, correspondence, research, and general information.

Title/Description	Instances
Administrative	
First Year Paper Research, 1986-1988	box 8
PFA Prospects and Research, 1988	box 7
Newspaper Advertising, 1988	box 7
PFA Proposals and Responses, 1988-1989	box 7
Correspondence, 1990-1991	box 8
Correspondence, 1991	box 8
Physical Description: 4 folders	
Correspondence, 1992-1993	box 8
Administrative File, 1993-1995	box 9
Publicity, 1994	box 8
PFA Mailing, 1994	box 9
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Other Foundations re: PFA, undated	box 7
First Year Report, undated	box 8
Projects and Collaborations	
Academy of American Poets File, 1993	box 17
Ackerman Institute for Family Therapy File, 1993	box 17

Actor's Studio Theatre at the New School, 1994	box 17
Africare File, 1993	box 17
The Albert Einstein Foundation File, 1990-1995	box 17
American Council for the Arts: Programs, 1983	box 18
American Council for the Arts: Correspondence, Financials, and Proposals,, 1983-1985	box 6
American Council for the Arts: Official Report, 1984	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Proposals and Meeting Notes, 1984	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Planning Report, 1984	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Reports and Proposals, 1984	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Administrative File, 1985	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Programs and Proposals, 1985	box 18
American Council for the Arts: Grants and Finance, 1987 undated	box 19
American Council for the Arts: Administrative, Budgets, and Correspondence,, 1987 undated	box 19
Physical Description: 3 folders	
American Playhouse File, 1993	box 17
The Artists Foundation File, 1987	box 17
Austen Riggs Foundation: Nominating Committee, 1994-1996	box 13
Austen Riggs Foundation: Development Committee and Financials,, 1995	box 13
Austen Riggs Foundation: Board of Trustees File, 1995-1996	box 13
Austen Riggs Foundation: Austen Riggs Center, 1995-1997	box 13
Austen Riggs Foundation: Board Retreat and Annual Report, 1996	box 13
Austen Riggs Foundation: Research, 1996	box 13
ASHOKA File, 1997	box 17
Bailey Scholarship Fund File, undated	box 17
Belgian American Educational Foundation File, 1994	box 17
Bryn Mawr College and Haverford College Career Development, 1995	box 17

The Bunting Institute at Harvard, 1993-1994 <u>Physical Description</u> : 2 folders	box 16
Catchword Fund: Correspondence and Research, 1995	box 8
Center for Educational Innovation, 1994-1995	box 17
Center for Effective Philanthropy File, 1986-1995	box 16
Center for Reproductive Law and Policy File, 1993-1995	box 16
Century Association File, 1992-1996	box 12
The Children's Storefront File, 1993	box 16
Chris Columbus Fellowship Foundation File, 1995	box 16
Columbia University Arts Program, 1991-1994	box 16
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities Ideas File,, 1979-1987	box 17
Physical Description: 2 folders	
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities NEA File,, 1986-1987	box 18
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities: Grant Research and Analysis,, 1986-1987	box 19
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities: Potential Projects,, 1987	box 19
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities File,, 1987	box 18
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities: Small Group Meeting Notes, Applications and Programs,, 1987	box 18
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Council on the Arts and Humanities: International File,, undated	box 18
The Compton Foundation: Programs, 1987	box 18
Concern for Dying File, 1986-1987	box 18
Copper Canyon Press File, 1992-1996	box 16
Council for Aid to Education File, 1994	box 17
Council of Literary Magazines and Presses File, 1993	box 16
Creative Alternatives of New York File, 1987-1989	box 18
Creative Philanthropic Resources, LTD: Correspondence and Proposals,, 1988-1989	box 6
Dalkey Archive Press: Correspondence and Research, 1994-1995	box 8

Physical Description: 2 folders

DoubleTake: Nominator Letters, 1995	box 7
Ecco Press: Correspondence and Research, 1995-1996	box 8
Echoing Green Graduate Fellows, 1994	box 10
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Writers' Fellowship and Awards, 1995	box 10
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Jervis Anderson, 1995	box 10
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Luis Arrea, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: William Finnegan, 1995	box 10
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Laura Flanders, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Natalie Kusz, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Stephen Maly, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Lisa Mann, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Ellen Meloy, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Kathleen Norris, 1995	box 10
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: George Packer, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Claudia Roth Pierpont, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Sandra Steingraber, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Mary Swander, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Shelley Washburn, 1995	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Philip Gourevitch, 1996	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Rafael Campo, undated	box 11
Echoing Green Nonfiction Fellowships: Sue Halpern, undated	box 10
En Garde Arts File, 1992	box 17

The Estate Planning Forum File, 1994	box 17
The European Mozart Foundation File, 1995-1996	box 17
The Family Office Exchange File, 1990-1994	box 17
Foundation for African American Women: Correspondence and Information,, 1990 Physical Description: 2 folders	box 10
Foundation for African American Women File, 1994	box 17
Fund for Artists' Colonies File, 1985-1987	box 18
Global Kids, Inc.: Board Meeting Notes, Correspondence, 1994-1997	box 12
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Granta's Under 40 Literature Contest, 1995	box 17
Halle, Roger, 1974-1986	box 18
The Harkness Fellowship Program, 1989-1995	box 17
The Heinz Awards, 1995	box 17
The Heinz Family Foundation File, 1993-1995	box 17
The Institute for the Study of World Politics File, 1996	box 17
The Kellogg Foundation: National African American Men and Boys Task Force File,, 1994-1996	box 7
The Kellogg Foundation Programs, 1993-1995	box 17
Korn/Ferry International File, 1992	box 17
The Library of America File, 1994-1995	box 17
Library of Congress Interpretive Programs: Freund Exhibition, 1995	box 17
The Lilly Endowment File, 1993	box 17
The Lissner Foundation File, 1992-1995	box 17
The Literary Network File, 1995-1996	box 17
The MacDowell Colony Doris Duke Will File, 1995	box 17
The MacDowell Colony File, 1991-1995	box 17
The MacDowell Colony Future Planning Committee File, 1996	box 17
The Macula Foundation File, 1993-1994	box 17
The Manhattan Institute File, 1993-1994	box 17
Manhattan Theatre Club File, 1986-1987	box 18
Manhattan Theatre Club File, 1993	

	box 18
Massachusetts Council on Arts: Report, 1987	box 8
Merrill Lynch/Charles Merrill General File, 1995	box 8
Merrill Lynch Resumes, undated	box 8
The National Committee for Responsive Philanthropy File, 1993-1994	box 16
The National Writer's Voice Project of the YMCA File, 1992-1995	box 16
The New Press Proposal for Public Interest Publishing House, 1990	box 10
Physical Description: 2 folders	
The New Press: Board Meeting Notes, Correspondence and Research,, 1994-1996	box 7
Physical Description: 3 folders	
New York Ear and Eye Infirmary Board Meeting Notes, 1986-1987	box 18
New York Eye and Ear Infirmary Correspondence, 1992-1994	box 9
New York Foundation for the Arts, 1995-1996	box 9
The New York Hospital-Cornell Medical Center Poetry Project Proposal,, 1990	box 17
North Country School File, 1992	box 16
The Pegasus Prize for Literature File, 1994-1995	box 16
The Philanthropic Initiative: Global Conference, 1993-1994	box 17
The Philanthropic Initiative File, undated	box 17
The Repertory Dance Theater: Correspondence, 1993	box 9
The Rye Arts Center Search for Executive Director, 1988-1990	box 17
Physical Description: 2 folders	
The Rye Arts Center Search for Executive Director, 1988-1990	box 18
St. Anthony's College File, 1996	box 17
St. Mark's Poetry Project: Studies and Proposals, 1992-1994	box 6
Schlesinger Library: Correspondence and Information, 1993-1995	box 9

Scientific Committee on Problems of the Environment: Project Correspondence, Proposals, and Research,, 1985	box 7
The Synergos Institute: Correspondence and Programs, 1993	box 8
The Synergos Institute: Correspondence and Programs, 1994	box 8
The Teagle Foundation, Annual Reports and Correspondence, 1989-1993	box 12
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Theater for a New Audience: Correspondence, Proposals and Information,, 1993-1995	box 9
Physical Description: 4 folders	
Vermont Public Radio: Correspondence and Programs,	box 8

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series III: Rockefeller Foundation

Scope and Contents

This series, arranged chronologically, documents Freund's work as the Associate Director at the Rockefeller Foundation. Files include correspondence, research, and philanthropic consultations. This series is especially strong in documenting Freund's work as the director of the Warren Weaver Fellows Program, with files that range from 1988 to 1993.

Title/Description	Instances
Warren Weaver Files	
Warren Weaver Files 1952 1974 undated, 1952, 1974 undated	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1988-1989	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1989-1990	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1990	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1991	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1992	box 2
Warren Weaver Files, 1993	box 2
Correspondence, Research, Resignation, 1960-1969	box 2
Rockefeller Inter-office Memos and IRP Applications, 1962	box 2
Imaginative Writing and Literary Scholarship Program, 1964 undated	box 2

	box 2
Rockefeller Consultant Appointment, 1989	box 2
P. Goldmark File, 1992-1994	box 2
Financial Reference Question, 1996	box 2
Gerald Freund Young Actors Subsistence Program, 1968	box 3
Memoirs of Rockefeller, undated	box 2

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series IV: Harlem Educational Activities Fund

Scope and Contents

This series demonstrates the work Freund completed on behalf of the Harlem Educational Activities Fund, abbr. HEAF. The series consists of four categories: Administrative Files, Financial Records, Programs, and Mott Hall. The administrative and financial files, arranged chronologically, document the staff, board meetings, correspondence, press, and general information of the organization. The Programs section, arranged alphabetically by organization, documents the programs that were instituted and maintained by the fund. Lastly, the Mott Hall section, arranged chronologically, details the specific programs and records at Mott Hall High School.

Title/Description	Instances
Administrative Files	
Press, 1990-1993	box 34
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1992	box 32
Staff and Programming, 1992	box 34
Administrative File, 1992-1993	box 32
Correspondence, 1992-1995	box 32
Administrative File, 1993	box 32
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Staff Meetings, 1993	box 34
Brochure and Newsletter, 1993 undated	box 32
Mission Statement and General Info, 1994	box 32
Administrative File, 1994	box 12
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Applications File, 1994	box 11
SUPPORT NET: HEAF Publication, 1995	box 11
Press, 1998	box 34

Dan Rose: Personal Address List, undated	box 8
Dan Rose: Administrative File, undated	box 32
Joanne Quinones: Administrative File, undated	box 32
Personnel, undated	box 34
Financial Records	
Financial Records, 1989	box 31
Financial Records, 1990	box 31
Financial Records, 1991	box 31
<u>Physical Description</u> : 4 folders	
Financial Records, 1991-1992	box 31
Financial Records, 1992	box 31
Physical Description: 3 folders	
Brochure and Fundraising, 1992	box 31
Check Orders and Receipts, 1992	box 31
Budget, 1992-1993	box 31
Expenses, 1993	box 31
Quarterly Tax Records, 1993	box 31
Financial Records, 1993	box 31
Physical Description: 3 folders	
Fundraising and Proposals, 1993-4	box 7
Financial Records, 1994-1995	box 31
Financial Records, undated	box 31
Programs	
Arts Programming, 1993	box 32
Boy Scouts, 1991	box 32
Boy Scouts, 1992-1993	box 32
Central Park Conservatory Program, 1991	box 32
Chess Program, 1992	box 32
Chess Program: Research and Press, 1993	box 32
Educational Programs, 1993	box 34
Faith Mission Church, 1993	box 32
Girl Scouts, 1991	box 32

Ph:	ysical	Descri	ption:	2	folders

box 32
box 32
box 34
box 32
box 9
box 32
box 34
box 34
box 34
box 34
box 32
box 8
box 32
box 32
hor 24
box 34
DOX 34
box 34
box 34
box 34 box 11
box 34 box 11 box 11
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 32
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 32 box 11
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 32 box 11 box 12
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 32 box 11 box 12 box 8
box 34 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 11 box 32 box 11 box 12 box 8

	box 34
Gifted Students Program, undated	box 11

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series V: MacArthur Foundation

Scope and Contents

This series documents Freund's work as the Vice President of the John D. and Catherine T. MacArthur Foundation, as well as the Director of the MacArthur Prize Fellows Program. The files, arranged chronologically, detail meeting notes, correspondence, and proposals for the foundation. It also includes selection committee notes, correspondence, and reports for the Prize Fellows Program.

Title/Description	Instances
MacArthur Foundation General Files	
Original Meeting Notes and Correspondence, 1979	box 5
MacArthur Foundation Minutes: Possible Program of Individual Awards,, 1979 Physical Description: 2 folders	box 16
Financial Reports and Correspondence, 1979-1982	box 4
Miscellaneous Proposals, 1980	box 5
Inter-office Memos, Correspondence and Research, 1980-1981	box 5
MacArthur BBC Documentary, 1981	box 5
MacArthur audiotapes with accompanying letter, 1981-1982	box 4
Board Agenda, 1983	box 5
News Releases and Correspondence, 1991-1992	box 5
18 Microcassettes, undated	box 4
4 Audiocassettes, undated	box 4
MacArthur Prize Fellows Program	
Nominators and Selection Committee Notes, 1979 undated	box 5
Selection Committee Correspondence with Saul Bellow, 1979 1983, 1979, 1983	box 4
Reviews and Reports of Selection Committee, 1979 1981 1985, 1979, 1981, 1985	box 5
Letter of Appointment to Program as Vice President of MacArthur Foundation,, 1979-1980	box 5

Selection Committee Transcripts, 1981	box 4
President's Report and Program Progress Report, 1981	box 5
Award Planning, Procedures and Follow-up, 1981	box 5
Responses on First Awards, 1981	box 5
Program Staffing, 1982	box 5
Selection Committee Notes, 1984-1985	box 5
Program Evaluation and Goals, 1990	box 5

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series VI: Whiting Foundation

Scope and Contents

This series documents Freund's work at the Whiting Foundation, as well as his role as the Director of the Whiting Writers' Awards. The Administrative Files and Whiting Writers' Awards Program Files, arranged chronologically, include correspondence, and information about nominees, nominators, panels, board meetings, and winners of the award. The Foundation Files, arranged alphabetically by organization, document collaboration with other philanthropic projects.

Scope and Contents

The files of the Whiting Foundation will be closed until 2049

Title/Description	Instances
Administrative Files	
Administrative File, 1985	box 47
Administrative File, 1985-1986	box 47
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1988	box 47
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1989	box 47
Administrative File, 1990	box 47
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1992	box 47
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1992	box 48
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Administrative File, 1992	box 48

Physica	al Descri	ption:	3	folders

Administrative File, 1994	box 48
Administrative File, 1995	box 48
General Whiting Writing File, undated	box 48
Whiting Writers' Awards Program Files	
History and Press, 1984-1985 undated, 1984-1985, undated	box 48
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1985-1986	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1987	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1988	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1989	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1990	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1991	box 47
Recipient Questionnaire, 1991 undated	box 47
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1994	box 48
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1995	box 48
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1996	box 48
Whiting Writers' Awards Program File, 1997	box 48
Names and Nominations, undated	box 45
Whiting Foundation Files	
Center for Visual History, Voices and Visions, 1981-1985	box 48
Suzanne Clerkin File, 1988	box 48
Lynn Goldberg Communications, 1995	box 45
Anne Burleigh Hansell File, 1995-1996	box 48
Institute for Civil Justice, 1984-1985	box 48
Kellye Rosenheim File, 1990	box 48
Translation Project, 1993	box 45
University Press Project, 1993	box 45
University Press Roundtable Meeting, 1993	box 45
Eudora Welty File, 1987 1992 undated, 1987, 1992 undated	box 48
Whiting Foundation Documentary and Poetry Breaks, 1988	box 48

	box 48
Whiting Foundation Interviews, 1993	box 48

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series VII: Woodstock Country School

Scope and Contents

The Woodstock Country School series documents Freund's attendance of the school, his participation on the Board of Trustees, work with the Woodstock Country School Foundation, as well as his role and involvement regarding the Woodstock Country School History Manuscript project. The series, organized chronologically, includes class notebooks, alumni directories, correspondence, foundation files, and drafts of the WCS History Manuscript.

Title/Description	Instances
Woodstock Country School	
Class Notebooks, 1946-1948	box 43
Class Notes and Papers, 1946-1948	box 43
Woodstock Property Search, 1971-1972	box 43
Quarterlies and Brochures, 1971-1978	box 43
Curriculum Guides and Alumni Directories, 1971-1980	box 43
Symposium, 1972 1975 1976 1977, 1972, 1975, 1976, 1977	box 43
David and Peggy Bailey File, 1981 undated	box 43
WCS Newsletter and Directory, 1993	box 43
Woodstock Country School Foundation	
Correspondence, 1970-1977	box 43
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Report to Trustees, 1971	box 43
Board of Trustees File, 1978-1980	box 43
Board of Trustees File, 1980	box 43
WCS Foundation Administrative Files, undated	box 43
Physical Description: 3 folders	
WCS Foundation Financial Records, undated	box 43
4 Audiocassettes, undated	box 43
Woodstock Country School Book Project	
Correspondence re: WCS History Book, 1982-1987	box 43

Physical Description: 2 folders

WCS History Book Draft: Introduction and Chapter 1, undated	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapters 2-3, 1987	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapters 4-5, 1987	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapters 5-6, 1987	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapters 6-7, 1987 <u>Physical Description</u> : 2 folders	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapters 8-9, 1987 <u>Physical Description</u> : 2 folders	box 44
WCS History Book Draft: Chapter 10, undated	box 44

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series VIII: Miscellaneous Correspondence

Scope and Contents

This series, arranged alphabetically by subject and by year, includes Freund's personal and professional correspondence spanning the years 1973 to 1996.

Title/Description	Instances
Alphabetically by Subject	
A: Correspondence, 1994	box 13
A: Resumes, undated	box 13
Armstrong, Laine, 1994	box 13
B: Correspondence, 1994	box 13
B: Resumes, undated	box 13
Bailey, Peggy, 1992-1996	box 16
Bellow, Rachel, 1994 undated	box 13
Biemann, Elizabeth, 1995	box 7
Biemann, Elizabeth, 1996	box 13
C: Correspondence, 1994	box 13
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Castro, Alexander, 1996	box 13
Cooke, Hope, 1990 1994 undated, 1990, 1994 undated	box 13
Cowin, Daniel, 1988 undated	box 13

D: Correspondence, 1985-1994 <u>Physical Description</u> : 2 folders	box 13
E: Correspondence, 1987-1997	box 13
F: Correspondence, 1987-1993	box 13
F: Correspondence, 1995-1997	box 13
Ford Foundation: Donna Shalala, 1983	box 4
Friedman, Ed, 1997	box 15
Freedman, James O., 1988-1995	box 13
Friedman, Michael, 1993-1995	box 13
G: Correspondence, 1994-1997	box 14
G: Correspondence, 1987 1992-1993, 1987, 1992-1993	box 14
Gibbs, Jeffrey, 1996	box 14
Goldenhar, Didi, 1994	box 14
Gordon, Sheldon, 1993	box 14
Gutman, Judith, 1990	box 14
H: Correspondence, 1994-1996	box 14
H: Correspondence, 1985-1988 1993, 1985-1988, 1993	box 14
Harrington, Laura, 1995-1996	box 14
Impara, Peter, 1987	box 14
Institute of Current World Affairs Correspondence, 1974-1975	box 3
J: Correspondence, 1986-1996	box 14
K: Correspondence, 1985-1986 1993, 1985-1986, 1993	box 14
K: Correspondence, 1994-1996	box 14
The Kellogg Foundation, 1993	box 7
Kleberg, Sally, 1995-1996	box 14
L: Correspondence, 1985-1996	box 14
M: Correspondence, 1985-1993	box 14
Physical Description: 2 folders	
M: Correspondence, 1994-1997	box 14
Mc: Correspondence, 1987-1995	box 14
Meyer, Peter, 1993-1995	box 14
Meyer, Sarah, 1990-1993	box 14

Moore, Honor, 1991	box 14
Mullen, Laura, 1986-1995	box 14
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Mullen, Laura, 1993	box 14
Murphy, Yannick, undated	box 14
N: Correspondence, 1993-1996	box 15
Nelson, Richard, 1986-1988 undated, 1986-1988, undated Physical Description: 2 folders	box 15
O: Correspondence, 1993-1995	box 15
P: Correspondence, 1986-1995	box 15
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Penn, Peggy, undated	box 15
Pickard, Tom, 1991	box 15
Q: Correspondence, 1994	box 15
Rose, Dan, 1986-1996	box 15
Rose, Susan, 1993	box 15
R: Correspondence, 1986-1996	box 15
S: Correspondence, 1986-1996	box 15
Physical Description: 3 folders	
Sandler, John, 1988-1996	box 16
Shinder, Jason, 1991-1996	box 16
T: Correspondence, 1987-1988 1995-1996, 1987-1988, 1995-1996	box 16
Thompson, Kenneth W., 1987-1996	box 16
U: Correspondence, 1993-1994	box 16
V: Correspondence, 1986-1996	box 16
W: Correspondence, 1986-1996	box 16
Physical Description: 2 folders	
Ward, Champ, 1993-1996	box 16
White, Mary, 1986-1995	box 16
X, Y, Z: Correspondence, 1986-1995	box 16
United Nations Correspondence, 1973	box 4

^ Return to Table of Contents

Series IX: Subject Files

Scope and Contents

This series documents Freund's work for several different organizations, both for corporate entities and pro bono cases. It also contains files that document his membership to several organizations, such as the Institute of Current World Affairs Council and the LOTOS Club.

Subseries IX.1: Pro Bono Files

Scope and Contents

This subseries, arranged alphabetically by name, contains files pertaining to Freund's pro bono work, and includes correspondence, proposals, and research information.

Title/Description	Instances
Croce, Arlene: Correspondence and General File, 1991	box 7
Kwitney, Jonathan: Correspondence and Research, 1989-1990	box 7
Miscellaneous Pro Bono Proposals and Correspondence, 1991-1992	box 7
Miscellaneous Pro Bono, 1991-1994	box 8
Miscellaneous Pro Bono Proposals and Correspondence, 1997	box 7
Negroni, Maria: Correspondence and Project File, 1993	box 7
"New Blankets:" Proposals and Correspondence, 1990-1991	box 7
Overseas Pro Bono: Correspondence and Letters of Agreement, 1991	box 7

Subseries IX.2: General Subject Files

Scope and Contents

This subseries, arranged alphabetically by name, contains files for various cultural institutions and philanthropic organizations that interacted with Freund throughout his career, without any formal attachment to a particular role in his professional career. It includes correspondence, review papers, and board meeting reports. It also demonstrates his larger roles in the Rona Jaffe Foundation, the Lila Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Project, the Dorothy and Lillian Gish Prize, and other philanthropic ventures.

Title/Description	Instances
Betts, Emilie W. File, 1993-1994	box 17
Citizens Union of the City of New York Financial Report,	box 4

Dana Foundation File, 1984 1987, 1984, 1987	box 6
Doge Foundation and Moyers Poetry Project: Proposals and Research,, 1990	box 10
Educational Equity Concepts: Correspondence and Research, 1995	box 8
Ensemble Studio Theatre File, 1995	box 15
Executive Vice Presidency of the Film Society of Lincoln Center,, 1970-1971	box 3
The Foundation Center: Dance, Theater, and Performing Arts Printout,, 1977	box 12
Foundation Ventures Correspondence, 1970	box 3
Foundation Ventures Corporation Correspondence, 1969-1970	box 3
Foundation Ventures Business File, 1968-1969	box 3
Foundation Ventures Trustees and Consultants, 1969	box 3
Foundation Ventures General File and Proposals, 1968-1970	box 3
Foundation Ventures Research, 1968-1970	box 3
Fund for Peace General Information, 1975-1987	box 18
Fund for Peace: Review Paper, 1988	box 4
Fund for Peace: Correspondence and Review Paper, 1988	box 10
Fund for Peace: Strategic Planning Committee Notes, 1990	box 10
Fund for Peace: Memos, Planning Committee Notes and Projects, 1993-1997	box 12
Fund for Peace: Memos, Planning Committee Notes and Projects, 1995-1997	box 12
Gish Prize Administrative File, 1993-1996	box 9
Gish Prize Administrative File, 1994-1996	box 9
Gish Prize Candidates, 1995-1996	box 9
Gish Prize Administrative File, 1997	box 9
Gish Prize Information, 1997	box 9
The Group: Correspondence, Meeting Notes and General Materials,, 1993-1996	box 7
Physical Description: 3 folders	
Henry Street Settlement Urban Life Center, undated	box 12
"Ideas in the News" Proposal, 1990	box 4

Institute of Current World Affairs Council Financial and Board Meeting Reports,, 1974	box 4
Institute of Current World Affairs Council Financial and Board Meeting Reports,, 1995-1996	box 7
Iowa Writers' Workshop File, 1986	box 6
The Knowledge Network correspondence and Project Research, 1991	box 7
LeBlanc, Adrian Nicole: Correspondence and Research, 1994-1996	box 7
Physical Description: 2 folders	
LeBlanc, Adrian Nicole: Correspondence, 1995 <u>Physical Description</u> : 2 folders	box 17
LeBlanc, Adrian Nicole: Correspondence, 1995-1996	box 10
Lengyl, Olga: General File, 1995	box 7
The Lotos Club: The Library Committee File, 1993-1996	box 7
National Aphasia Association: General Information and Research,, 1986-1989	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Funding Sources and Research, 1987-1988	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Board Meeting Notes, 1987-1989	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Drafts and Surveys, 1987-1989 undated, 1987-1989, undated	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Proposal Ideas and Suggestions, 1988	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Bylaws and Mission Statement, 1988	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Publicity and Media, 1988-1989	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Advisory Board Notes, 1989	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Joe Chaikin File, 1989	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Publications, 1989 undated	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Correspondence and Board Meeting Notes,, 1989-1990	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Correspondence, Proposals and Fundraising:, 1989-1991	box 11
Physical Description: 2 folders	
National Aphasia Awareness Week, June 4-10, 1990	box 11

National Aphasia Association: Administrative File, 1991	box 12
National Aphasia Association: Administrative File, 1991-1992	box 12
National Aphasia Association: Administrative File, 1993	box 12
National Aphasia Association: Executive Board Information, 1993	box 11
National Aphasia Association: Administrative File, 1995-1997	box 12
New York Regional Association of Grantmakers: Newsletter, 1995	box 9
New York Society Library Annual Report, 1994	box 9
New York State Council on the Arts: Performing Arts Program Income and Expense Report,, 1973-1974	box 4
Presidential Search Committee, undated	box 3
The Renaissance Program: Information, 1993	box 9
Rolodex of Contacts and Business Cards, A-Z, undated	box 15
Rona Jaffe Foundation Writers' Awards: Nomination Records, 1994	box 9
Rona Jaffe Foundation Writers' Awards: General File, 1995-1996	box 9
Rona Jaffe Foundation Writers' Awards: Progress Report, 1996	box 9
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Grant Applications, 1977-1978	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Year-ending Statement, 1978	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Private Appeals, 1978	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: NY State Council on the Arts Applications,, 1978-1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Touring Budget, 1978-1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Production Expenses, 1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Benefit Dinner Proofs, 1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Fashion Institute of Technology,, 1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: National Endowment Application,, 1979	box 12

Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Correspondence with the Ford Foundation,, 1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Private Fundraising and Benefit Program Ad Material,, 1979	box 12
Rubenstein Theater Foundation: Company Resumes, undated	box 12
Street Project: Research, 1993	box 7
Theater File: General Information, 1987 undated	box 12
U.S. Library File and Proposal, 1992	box 7
Ventures in Education: Information and Research, 1993	box 7
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Project Report, 1989	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Administrative File,, 1989	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Meeting Notes, 1989	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Programs, 1989	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Project Planning and Procedures,, 1989-1990	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Commentaries and Responses,, 1989-1990	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards General Correspondence,, 1989-1990	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Nominator and Candidate Information,, 1989-1991	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Administrative File,, 1990	box 10
Wallace-Reader's Digest Fund Writers' Awards Program Review, 1995	box 10
Women's Rights Project: Correspondence and Information, 1996	box 9
Woodstock Historical Society Annual Report, 1993-1994	box 7
The Writers' Project at the New School	box 3

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series X: Published Books

Scope and Contents

This series depicts Freund's academic interests in both German history and American philanthropy. It is comprised of the research, drafts, bound copies and correspondence relating to Freund's three published books.

Subseries X.1: Unholy Alliance

Scope and Contents

This subseries includes drafts and correspondence relating to his book *Unholy Alliance: Russian-German Relations from the Treaty of Brest-Litovsk to the Treaty of Berlin.*It is arranged chronologically.

Title/Description	Instances
Unholy Alliance	box 3

Subseries X.2: Germany Between Two Worlds

Scope and Contents

This subseries, arranged chronologically, includes drafts and correspondence relating to his book Germany Between Two Worlds.

Title/Description	Instances
Germany Between Two Worlds	box 3

Subseries X.3: Narcissism and Philanthropy

Scope and Contents

This subseries contains files pertaining to both the writing and research of Narcissism and Philanthropy: Ideas and Talent Denied. It contains drafts, notes, and proposals, as well as correspondence and notes from the book's editor, Emily Mandelstam. The series also contains the research Freund used for his book, including articles on giftedness, talent, and creativity. The subseries is arranged chronologically.

Title/Description	Instances
Writing	
Guggenheim Fellowship Application, 1988-1989	box 6
Emily Mandelstam Financials and Correspondence, 1990-1992	box 6
Draft Chapters edited by Emily and GF, 1991-1992	box 6
Transcribed Discussions about Philanthropy Book with Emily Mandelstam,, 1991-1992	box 6
Early Draft of Philanthropy Book, 1992	box 6
Inserts to Book Project, 1992	box 6
Philanthropy Book Chapters, 1994 undated	box 6
"Friendly Fire" by Gerald Freund, undated	box 6

Research and Writing Proposals, undated	box 7
Research	
Giftedness Articles, 1978-1988	box 6
Talent Research, 1980-1990	box 6
Gifted Children, 1980-1990	box 6
Miscellaneous Articles and Research for Philanthropy Book,, 1985-1992	box 6
Plowden/Freund Seminar on Philanthropy, 1986-1991	box 7
Physical Description: 3 folders	
Terry Odendahl Correspondence and Research, 1988-1989	box 4
Correspondence: Philanthropy and Various Papers, 1990	box 4
Creativity Research, 1990	box 6
Foundation Research, 1990	box 6
Research and Responses to "Friendly Fire,", 1993	box 6
Philanthropy Sources and Research, 1994	box 9
NEA Lit Study, 1994-1995	box 16
Physical Description: 2 folders	
NEA Lit Study, 1994-1995	box 17
Philanthropy Study, undated	box 16
Talent Research, undated	box 4

Subseries X.4: Research

Scope and Contents

This subseries, arranged chronologically, includes the research Freund collected relating to both foreign relations and government systems, with an emphasis on Germany. It also documents Freund's activity as council member of the Council on Foreign Relations, from years 1969-1978.

Title/Description	Instances
Newspaper Articles on Germany and International Affairs, 1961-1963	box 6
Magazine Articles and Brochures on German Affairs, 1961-1963	box 6
Foreign Policy Research Roundtable, 1962	box 6
Literary Critics, 1966-1967	box 6
Council on Foreign Relations General File, 1969-1970	box 3

Council on Foreign Relations, 1972-1978

	DOX 3
Council on Foreign Relations, 1973-1978	box 3
Research: Chronicle of Philanthropy, 1988	box 6
Council on Foreign Relations, 1993-1996	box 12
Council on Foreign Relations General File, undated	box 3

[^] Return to Table of Contents

Series XI: Unprocessed Boxes

Scope and Contents

This series comprises twenty-three (23) boxes of material which is yet to be processed.

Title/Description	Instances
Contents not described or listed	box 24
Contents not described or listed	box 25
Contents not described or listed	box 26
Contents not described or listed	box 27
Contents not described or listed	box 28
Contents not described or listed	box 29
Contents not described or listed	box 30
Contents not described or listed	box 35
Contents not described or listed	box 36
Contents not described or listed	box 37
Contents not described or listed	box 38
Contents not described or listed	box 39
Contents not described or listed	box 40
Contents not described or listed	box 41
Contents not described or listed	box 42
Contents not described or listed	box 49
Contents not described or listed	box 50
Contents not described or listed	box 51
Contents not described or listed	box 52
Contents not described or listed	box 53
Contents not described or listed	box 54

Contents not described or listed	box 55
Contents not described or listed	box 56

[^] Return to Table of Contents